
Arun District Council
Civic Centre
Maltravers Road
Littlehampton
West Sussex
BN17 5LF

Tel: (01903 737500)
Fax: (01903) 730442
DX: 57406 Littlehampton
Minicom: 01903 732765

e-mail: committees@arun.gov.uk

Committee Manager Carrie O'Connor, Committee Manager
10 January 2019

Licensing Subcommittee

A meeting of the Licensing Subcommittee will be held in Committee Room 1 (Pink Room), 
Arun Civic Centre on the Friday, 25th January, 2019 at 9.30 am and you are requested to 
attend.

Members: Councillors Clayden, Cooper and Warren

A G E N D A

1. ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
Members and Officers are reminded to make any declarations 
of pecuniary,
personal and/or prejudicial interests that they may have in 
relation to items on this agenda and are reminded that they 
should re-declare their interest before
consideration of the item or as soon as the interest becomes 
apparent.

Members and officers should make their declaration by stating 
:

a) the item they have the interest in
b) whether it is a pecuniary, personal and/or prejudicial
c) the nature of the interest

3. ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA WHICH THE CHAIRMAN OF 
THE MEETING IS OF THE OPINION SHOULD BE 
CONSIDERED AS A MATTER OF URGENCY BY REASON 
OF SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES 

Public Document Pack



4. EXEMPT INFORMATION 
The Committee is asked to consider passing the following 
resolution:-

That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 
1972, the public and accredited representatives of 
newspapers be excluded from the meeting for the following 
items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Act by virtue of the paragraph specified 
again the items.

5. APPLICATION FOR A HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE 
HIRE DRIVER LICENCE (EXEMPT - PARAGRAPH 1 - 
INFORMATION RELATING TO INDIVIDUALS) 

(Pages 1 - 10)

To consider the attached report.

6. APPLICATION FOR A HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE 
HIRE DRIVER LICENCE (EXEMPT - PARAGRAPH 1 - 
INFORMATION RELATING TO INDIVIDUALS) 

(Pages 11 - 22)

To consider the attached report.

The meeting will then move into open session

7. APPLICATION FOR THE VARIATION OF A PREMISES 
LICENCE, BEST KEBAB, 18 QUEENSWAY, BOGNOR 
REGIS 

(Pages 23 - 56)

This report requests Members to consider the matter of an 
application for the variation of a premises licence for Best 
Kebab, 18 Queensway, Bognor Regis.

Note : *Indicates report is attached for all Members of the Council only and the press 
(excluding exempt items).  Copies of reports can be obtained on request from the 
Committee Manager).

Note :  Members are reminded that if they have any detailed questions would they please 
inform the Chairman and/or relevant Director in advance of the meeting.



Document is Restricted

Page 1

Agenda Item 5
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 7

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 11

Agenda Item 6
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 17

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 21

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



ARUN DISTRICT COUNCIL
LICENSING SUBCOMMITTEE – 25th JANUARY 2019

PART A:  REPORT
SUBJECT: Application for the variation of a Premises Licence  

REPORT AUTHOR:  Glenn James, Licensing Officer
DATE: 2 January 2019
EXTN:  37681
PORTFOLIO AREA:  Place

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: This report asks Members to consider the matter of an 
application for the variation of a premises licence for Best Kebab, 18 Queensway, Bognor 
Regis  

RECOMMENDATIONS: It is recommended that the Members consider application and 
make an appropriate decision from the options available to them at section 3.0 of this 
report.

1.    BACKGROUND:
1.0 Introduction 

1.1 Mr Mehmet Karakus has made an application to vary a premises licence under 
section 34 of the Licensing Act 2003. 

1.2 The premise is subject to an existing premises licence for the provision of late 
night refreshment. 

1.3 The premises is situated on a main thoroughfare where there is a mix of 
residential and business properties. .

1.4 The premise is a small fast food outlet with a maximum of 8 covers and operates 
only at street level. 

1.5 The variation to the application is for the following licensable activities:

Supply of alcohol on and off 
premises

13.00.00 to 01.00 Monday to Wednesday
13.00 to 03.00 Thursday
13.00 to 04.00 Friday and Saturday
13.00 to 01.00 Sunday  

Hours open to the public 13.00.00 to 01.00 Monday to Wednesday
13.00 to 03.00 Thursday
13.00 to 04.00 Friday and Saturday
13.00 to 01.00 Sunday  

Removal of condition On all days when the licence permits the 

Page 23

Agenda Item 7



premises to remain open after 01.00, a licensed 
and registered door supervisor will be deployed 
on the premises from 01.30 until the premises 
closes. The person deployed in this capacity will 
not perform any other role whilst performing door 
supervision activities. 

1.6 The current licence is for:

Supply of Alcohol No alcohol currently being supplied 

Hours open to the public 13.00 to 01.00 Monday to Wednesday 
13.00 to 03.00 Thursdays
13.00 to 04.00 Friday and Saturday 
13.00 to 01.00 Sunday 

Licence condition On all days when the licence permits the 
premises to remain open after 01.00, a licensed 
and registered door supervisor will be deployed 
on the premises from 01.30 until the premises 
closes. The person deployed in this capacity will 
not perform any other role whilst performing door 
supervision activities.

1.7 Representations against the application have been received from Licensing 
authority, Environmental Health, Regeneration team, Sussex police and Bognor 
Regis Town Council. The representations are considered valid tin regards to the 
licensing objectives, The Subcommittee may only consider those points within 
representations which are relevant in terms of the Act and relate to the licensing 
objectives. 

1.8 The applicant was advised of the nature of the representations and responded to 
Licensing on 30th November 2018, that the SIA door staff will remain and to 
reduce the hours for the sale of alcohol, however he did not provided any times 
for which the sale of alcohol will take place. 

1.9 On 14th December 2018 the applicant responded to the police representation 
stating that he would wish to remove the SIA door supervisor on Fridays and to 
keep the SIA door supervisor on Saturdays. He also stated he would reduce the 
sale of alcohol on:

Sundays to Wednesday 13.00 to Midnight
Thursday to Saturday 13.00 to 02.00

The applicant has stated they wish to keep the existing conditions and operating 
schedule,  but refers to any other condition to be added to the licence to promote 
the licensing objectives 

1.10   At the present time there is no sanitary accommodation in the premises for 
customers. The guidance for sanitary accommodation in a food business states: 
‘Restaurants, cafes, fast food outlets and canteens with 0-8 seats = no minimum 
sanitary requirements required’.

Page 24



2.0 POLICY CONSIDERATIONS

Aruns policy states:

5.10 Arun District Council acknowledge that licensing law is not a mechanism for 
the general control of anti-social behaviour by people once they are beyond 
the direct control of the individual, club or business holding a licence, 
certificate or relevant permission.  However, the Licensing Authority 
believes a level of responsibility for customer or member behaviour clearly 
exists beyond the site boundary.  The Licensing Authority will seek 
compelling evidence linking incidents that occur away from particular 
premises when making decisions concerning licences, certificates or 
notices.  The control of anti-social behaviour away from licensed premises, 
qualifying clubs and temporary events is primarily a matter for the Police 
but the individual, club or business holding a licence, certificate or relevant 
permission will be expected to work in co-operation with the Police to 
ensure that, wherever possible, anti-social behaviour away from premises 
and events is minimised.

6.2 This policy shall avoid unnecessary duplication or inefficiencies by properly 
separating the planning and licensing regimes in operation.

8.2 The licensing committee or its subcommittee licensing authority is only able 
to impose additional conditions that are clearly proportionate and 
appropriate following relevant representation made to the authority or that 
are agreed with the applicant.  Such conditions will only be imposed if 
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. The licensing 
authority may act in its capacity as a responsible authority and raise 
representations in relation to an application if it deems it appropriate to do 
so.

11.5 The Council may require stricter (noise) conditions where the premises are 
situated in an area primarily of a residential nature.

3.0 OBSERVATIONS

3.1 The Subcommittee is obliged to determine the application with a view to 
promoting the licensing objectives, which are:

i) The Prevention of Crime and Disorder
ii) The Prevention of Public Nuisance
iii) Protection of Children from Harm 
iv) Public Safety

3.2 In making its decision the Subcommittee is also obliged to have regard to 
national guidance and Arun’s Statement of Licensing Policy.

3.3 The Subcommittee must also have regard to all relevant representations and 
evidence that it hears 

Page 25



2.  PROPOSAL(S): To consider the applicant with a view the licensing objectives and 
make an appropriate decision from the options available at section 3.0 of this 
report.

3.  OPTIONS
3.1  Grant the licence as applied for

3.2   Grant the licence with the modified times and conditions as stated in appendix 7   

3.3   Grant the licence but add whatever conditions is deemed appropriate to promote 
the licensing objectives

 
3.4 Modify the application

3.5 Refuse the application  

4.  CONSULTATION: Not Applicable

Has consultation been undertaken with: YES NO
Relevant Town/Parish Council 

Relevant District Ward Councillors 

Relevant Authorities 

Other groups/persons (please specify) (public advert)

5.  ARE THERE ANY IMPLICATIONS IN RELATION TO 
THE FOLLOWING COUNCIL POLICIES:
(Explain in more detail at 6 below)

YES NO

Financial x

Legal ×

Human Rights/Equality Impact Assessment ×

Community Safety including Section 17 of Crime & 
Disorder Act

×

Sustainability x

Asset Management/Property/Land x

Technology x

Other (please explain) x

6.  IMPLICATIONS: 

7.  REASON FOR THE DECISION: The Council has a statutory duty to determine the 
application and give full reasons for their decision.

Page 26



APPENDICES:
1 Application
2 current licence
3 Photographs of the local area
4 Plan of premises
5 Representations 
6 Correspondence from applicant regarding licensing representation
7 Correspondence from applicant regarding police representations
8 Guidance for the provision of sanitary accommodation 

BACKGROUND PAPERS: 
Licensing Act 2003
Section 182 Guidance 
Arun District Council Statement of Policy

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Powered by TCPDF (www.tcpdf.org)

Page 42

http://www.tcpdf.org


Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



P
age 47



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



From:                                         Joanne Davis <joannedavis@bognorregis.gov.uk>
Sent:                                           12 December 2018 13:01
To:                                               Licensing
Subject:                                     Licence Number - 111224
 
Licensing Act 2003
Premises: Best Kebab, 18 Queensway, Bognor Regis
Licence Number: 111224
 
The premises licence as detailed above, was discussed at the Bognor Regis Town Council, Planning and 
Licensing Committee meeting on 4th December 2018.
 
Whilst the Committee did not object to the scheduled days/timings to supply alcohol, Members 
RESOLVED to OBJECT to the application for the sale of alcohol for consumption off the premises on the 
following grounds:- Prevention of crime and disorder; and the prevention of public nuisance. 
 
There were concerns over alcohol being available to purchase at such an early hour, especially due to 
where this premises is situated in the Town Centre, and the potential for issues with street drinkers and 
antisocial behavior in nearby areas such as the Sunken Gardens and Queensway car park. The Town 
Council has been working successfully with other organisations and the police to address the situation of 
street drinking in Bognor Regis and this application goes against this work.
 
Kind regards,
 
Jo
 

Jo Davis
Civic & Office Manager
Bognor Regis Town Council
Town Hall
Clarence Road
Bognor Regis
West Sussex PO21 1LD
joannedavis@bognorregis.gov.uk
01243 867744
 
Town Council Office Hours: 9.00am-1.00pm and 2.00pm-5.30pm Mon-Thurs
Please note the office is closed between 1.00pm and 2.00pm Mon-Thurs and all day Friday
 
You have received this email from Bognor Regis Town Council. The content of this email is confidential 
may be legally privileged and intended for the recipient specified in message only. It is strictly forbidden 
to share any part of this message with any third party, without a written consent of the sender. If you 
received this message by mistake, please reply to this message and follow with its deletion, so that we 
can ensure such a mistake does not occur in the future. Bognor Regis Town Council, ensures that email 
security is a high priority. Therefore, we have put efforts into ensuring that the message is error and 
virus-free. Unfortunately, full security of the email cannot be ensured as, despite our efforts, the data 
included in emails could be infected, intercepted, or corrupted. Therefore, the recipient should check the 

Page 51

mailto:joannedavis@bognorregis.gov.uk


email for threats with proper software, as the sender does not accept liability for any damage inflicted by 
viewing the content of this email. By Contacting Bognor Regis Town Council, you agree that your contact 
details may be held and processed for the purpose of corresponding. You may request access to the 
information we hold on you by emailing bognortc@bognorregis.gov.uk. You may request to be removed 
as a contact at any time by emailing   bognortc@bognorregis.gov.uk. To view Bognor Regis Town 
Council’s Privacy Notice please use the following link: http://www.bognorregis.gov.uk .  
 

Page 52

mailto:bognortc@bognorregis.gov.uk
mailto:bognortc@bognorregis.gov.uk
http://www.bognorregis.gov.uk/


From:                                         Anna Appleton
Sent:                                           07 December 2018 14:56
To:                                               Licensing; Sarah Meeten
Subject:                                     Variation to Premises Licence - Best Kebab, Queensway, Bognor Regis 
 
Dear Sirs
 
Objection to variation application for Best Kebab, Queensway, Bognor Regis
 
Environmental Health would like to raise an objection to the application to vary the above licence on the 
following grounds: 
 
The Prevention of Public Nuisance 
 
The applicant seeks permission for the sale of alcohol during its opening hours,  (Sunday - Wednesday 
from 1pm – 1am, Thursday from 1pm - 3am and Friday and Saturday from 1pm – 4am). They also seek 
to remove the need for SIA registered door staff. There are residential flats directly above and opposite 
the premises as well as in the surrounding street. The proposed extended hours for the consumption of 
alcohol combined with the lack of supervision would give rise to a strong potential for public nuisance 
due to noise from customers e.g. from customers shouting, loud talking etc. This is compounded by the 
fact that at 3-4am the background noise in the area will be quiet e.g. no traffic, so any noise from 
customers inside or outside the shop will be magnified and are more likely to cause a nuisance to 
residents nearby. 
 
The Prevention of Crime & Disorder
 
This local area has already been identified as an area dealing with anti-social behaviour relating to the 
night time economy. Therefore the proposed extension to the hours that alcohol is sold could fuel more 
of this behaviour with customers drinking into the early hours of the morning.
 
Should you have any further queries please do not hesitate to contact me.
 
Anna Appleton
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Anna Appleton | Environmental Health Team Leader, Arun District Council | Location: Arun Civic Centre, Maltravers Road, 
Littlehampton, BN17 5LF 

Internal: 37676 | External: +44 (0) 1903 737676 | E-mail: anna.appleton@arun.gov.uk Secure E-mail: 
aappleton@arun.gcsx.gov.uk 

Visit Arun's web site at www.arun.gov.uk   Save the environment - think before you print.

Page 53

mailto:anna.appleton@arun.gov.uk
http://www.arun.gov.uk/
mailto:anna.appleton@arun.gov.uk
mailto:aappleton@arun.gcsx.gov.uk
blocked::http://www.arun.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



Arun District Council
Civic Centre
Maltravers Road
Littlehampton
West Sussex. BN17 5LF

Tel: (01903) 737755

Fax: (01903) 723936
DX: 57406 Littlehampton
Minicom: (01903) 732765
web: www.arun.gov.uk/licensing 
email: sarah.meeten@arun.gov.uk

30 November 2018

Please ask for:
Your Ref: . Sarah Meeten

Environmental Health
Our Ref: EH/SM/L6739. /sm Direct Line: (01903)737755

Dear Sirs,

Objection to variation application for Best Kebab, Queensway, Bognor Regis

I act on behalf of the Licensing Authority as a Responsible Authority. The authority is in 
receipt of a variation application dated 12/11/18. It is contended that the application if 
granted will undermine the licensing objectives of The Prevention of Crime & Disorder and 
the Prevention of Public Nuisance. 

Essentially the variation seeks:
 Removal of the requirement for use of SIA registered door staff at the premises
 Addition of the sale of alcohol 

The above two proposals being made in tandem are alarming to officers, especially in the 
locality of the premises which is a known anti-social behaviour hot spot. There is concern 
that the applicant has not considered the needs of the community together with the needs of 
his business, this being evidenced through the contradictory nature of the proposal. 
Removing door staff whilst proposing to sell alcohol and failing to offer any adequate 
alternatives to mitigate the risks that arise from such an activity is considered unacceptable.

Traditionally late night refreshment licences have been granted to such establishments with 
hours later than nearby alcohol licensed premises with a view to customers being able to 
purchase hot food and or drink on their way out of the area which accommodates the 
individual needs whilst assisting to wind down the evening and disperse customers 
gradually. This application seeks to continue supply of alcohol until between 0100hrs and 
0400hrs depending on the day of the week. 

The operating schedule proposes conditions that appear to have been lifted from another 
application in another area, indeed even referring to the wrong police force. Although the 
content is substantial in wording it lacks enforceable and clear steps that the applicant will 

Page 55

http://www.arun.gov.uk/licensing
mailto:sarah.meeten@arun.gov.uk


take to ensure that his business does not adversely impact on the local amenity and 
undermine the licensing objectives. 

This local area is focus for authorities working to deal with issues of anti-social behaviour 
relating to the night time economy. The applicant has not proposed any measures that will 
suitably mitigate the impact of continued supply of alcohol in this area at such hours of the 
morning and no consideration appears to have been given to the needs of the local amenity. 

Proposed steps in the operating schedule include the maintenance of records and the 
implementation of proof of age policies. Officers across agencies have commented that they 
have observed that English language skills of staff appear to be a barrier to communication. 
It is unclear how the applicant will be able to uphold his obligations if staff cannot effectively 
communicate with customers.

It is proposed that on and off sales of alcohol may be supplied to those purchasing a 
‘substantial meal’. The term ‘substantial meal’ is not defined. The applicant will have no 
control over customers once they leave the vicinity of the premises and consume alcohol in 
the streets with their food at the end of an evening. 

For those consuming alcohol on the premises in the small amount of seating available, it is 
proposed that no SIA registered staff are required. In addition there appears to no toilet 
accessible. Officers have concern of the effects of supply of alcohol at these premises on 
immediate and wider areas. 

The Licensing Authority granting a licence for provision of alcohol (or indeed the operation of 
a late night refreshment premises) with no SIA registered door staff at such late hours on 
such a regular basis, in an area with residential accommodation above would not be 
considered to be fulfilling obligations to promote the licensing objectives in the proposed 
circumstances. 

Yours Sincerely,

Sarah Meeten
Licensing Manager

Page 56


	Agenda
	5 APPLICATION FOR A HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCE (Exempt - Paragraph 1 - Information Relating to Individuals)
	Driver 1 Application appendix 1 - application - redacted

	6 APPLICATION FOR A HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCE (Exempt - Paragraph 1 - Information Relating to Individuals)
	Driver Application with previous conviction appendix 1 - application - redacted
	Driver Application with previous conviction appendix 2 licence

	7 APPLICATION FOR THE VARIATION OF A PREMISES LICENCE, BEST KEBAB, 18 QUEENSWAY, BOGNOR REGIS
	Variation Best Kebab appendix 1 - application (redacted)
	Variation Best Kebab appendix 2 - current licence
	Variation Best Kebab appendix 3 - plan of local area
	Variation Best Kebab appendix 4 - current premises plan
	Licence Number - 111224
	Variation to Premises Licence - Best Kebab Queensway Bognor Regis
	Variation Best Kebab appendix 5 - licensing representation (redacted)


